TABLE OF CONTENTS

CONSTITUTION	
NAME OF CORPORATION1	6/30/09
CLASS OF CORP., VISION, MISSIONS AND OBJECTIVES, OFFICES	0/30/09
	2 6/30/09
POWERS	6/30/14
OFFICERS AND THEIR ELECTIONS 3	6/30/00
DUTIES OF OFFICERS	
BOARD OF TRUSTEES 4	6/27/18
EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE	6/30/14
CLUB ORGANIZATION	< 10.0 to 5
DELEGATES MEETING	6/30/15
6.	
NOMINATING COMMITTEE	6/30/14
REVENUE AND DUES	
BYLAWS AND POLICY	
AMENDMENTS 8	6/30/16
BYLAWS AND POLICY	
ORDER OF BUSINESS	6/22/18
CORRESPONDENCE	
COMMITTEES	
Standing Committees - General Duties	1/20/17
3	1/11/18
4	1/11/18
5	6/22/18
6	6/22/18
MEMBERSHIP AND MEMBERSHIP PRIVILEGES	6/25/15
8	6/24/16
International Dues 9	7/05/16
Lifetime Membership	
Effecting Weinbership 10	
Definitions of Member 10	
Membership Stars	
DISCIPLINARY PROCEDURES	
CLUB ORGANIZATION	
MERGER, CONSOLIDATION OR DISSOLUTION OF UNITS	
	'.2 1/24/19 *
BOARD OF TRUSTEES 18	1/24/19 *
Term of Office	
REGIONS 20	1/10/14
21	
	6/27/14
24	
	6/19/90

TABLE OF CONTENTS

PAGE - 2 ISSUED - 1/24/19

	ORATE MANAGER			
OFFICIAL PUBLIC	CATIONS		1/11/18	
			1/11/18 rev	vised
	Distribution		1/20/17	_
USE OF CLUB NA	ME AND EMBLEM		1/24/19	*
	LIABILITY	31	7/05/10	
PUBLIC RELATIO				
FINANCIAL MAN				
	Identified Funds		7/22/17	
			7/22/17 rev	vised
			1/20/17	
	Insurance Coverage	35	1/20/17	
	***************************************		1/28/11	
	Financial Disbursements	35.2	6/22/18	
		36	6/22/18	
		37	1/24/19	*
		38	6/22/18	
		39	6/22/18 rev	rised
		40	6/22/18 rev	rised
RALLIES		41	6/22/18 rev	rised
	••••••	42	7/05/16	
	••••••	43	1/14/16	
	***************************************	44	6/22/18	
	***************************************	45	6/22/18 rev	rised
		46	1/10/14	
CARAVANS		47	7/22/17	
		48	7/22/17	
		49	7/22/17	
NTRA-CLUBS		50	1/14/16	
AST INTERNATION	ONAL PRES. COUNCIL	51	1/24/19	
TANDARD ITEM	S			
	Badges	51	1/24/19	*
			1/24/19 rev	rised *
			6/22/18	
	Pennants & Flags		6/27/13	
			1/24/19	*
			6/27/05	
	Membership Numbers		6/22/18	
			6/22/18	
			6/24/16	
	Past President Pennants, Decals		1/24/19	*
	Officers Flags		1/26/13	
ELEGATE VOTIN	VG		1/26/13	
MENDMENTS			1/20/13	
	EX.		1/14/16	*
A D D D C I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I I				

^{*} denotes new page

- C. WBCCI is a US Ohio-based non-profit corporation. Depending on the availability of liability insurance through WBCCI and the requirements of the US Revenue Service, each Unit may be required to furnish a minimum liability insurance policy in the amount of one million dollars (\$1,000,000 in US currency and continue to keep current) naming the WBCCI as the insured before any charter can be given and retained. Each Unit may be required to be organized as a not for profit or tax exempt corporation or organization under the laws of their respective country and shall provide proof of good standing to Headquarters at that time of incorporation and any subsequent change of status. Legal review may be required. All international WBCCI dues paid shall be in US Funds. (1/14/16)
- D. If no delegate from an overseas Unit is available to be present at the annual Delegates Meeting during the International Rally, the Chair of the WBCCI Standing Committee for International Relations shall, if requested by that Unit, designate a Delegate if voting preferences are provided. The Corporate Manager and/or this Standing Committee Chair will provide representation at IBT meetings; however the International President will provide their vote if Unit so requests. (1/14/16)
- E. These Units will be considered as an official part of the WBCCI Club, subject to all appropriate rules and regulations as determined by the IBT. Members will be considered as regular members of the WBCCI and enjoy the privileges of membership, but likewise be governed by the regulations of the Club including their own WBCCI approved unit constitution and bylaws.
- F. If requested by any one of these units, the IBT may authorize special considerations to that unit and/or its members in such matters as travel in Canada and/or the United States, etc., which may differ from rules governing units/members residing within the North American continent as appropriate. An additional postal charge will be added to individual dues unless the Unit chooses to opt out of mailings.
- G. Every member is encouraged to fly the flag of their nation and those of WBCCI, and observe international flag protocol if traveling in other nations.

Policy

- A. <u>Names of Units</u> Names may be geographical in nature and represent a geographical area and/or be the name of the State or Province in which most of its members retain residence, but no Unit shall be assigned any exclusive territory. (7/5/13)
 - The Board of Trustees or Executive Committee may, upon written request, authorize names for new Units and names for Units that have merged or consolidated or the renaming of existing Units. (1/24/19)
- B. <u>Unit Officers</u> No regular member shall be elected or appointed as an officer of a unit unless they are a Regular Member or Provisional member of the Unit. (6/27/14)
- C. Ethics and Grievance Each unit should appoint an Ethics and Grievance Committee for the investigation of complaints against members. The committee members, before commencing an investigation of a complaint, must read WBCCI Bylaws Article V "DISCIPLINARY PROCEDURES". In addition the unit President and the committee members should follow the checklist contained in the WBCCI Blue Book Appendix #11. In the case of the expulsion of a member, International dues will be refunded only on the recommendation of the International President.

D. Upon the granting of a permanent charter to the new unit, the property, funds and assets of each unit being held in trust shall be assigned to the new unit and the charters of the units that have consolidated shall be returned to the new unit to be kept for historical purposes. (1/20/95)

Sec. 4 Bylaws

WBCCI BLUE BOOK

In the case of the dissolution of a unit, the members paying international dues to such unit may become members of another unit of each individual members' choice, and a unit upon dissolution shall cease to be a unit of the international club. (6/22/18)

- A. A unit wishing to dissolve shall send, by First Class mail or Email, a notice of the proposal for the dissolution of the unit to all regular members of the unit at least thirty (30) days prior to a business meeting or a special meeting called for that purpose. A copy of the proposal for dissolution shall be sent to the President of the Region and to Headquarters. The copy to Headquarters shall also include the unit charter and an inventory listing of the property, bank accounts and other assets owned by the unit including international club property such as blue books. The property, funds and assets of the unit shall be held in trust by the international club and the International President shall appoint a trustee to act on behalf of the international club pending dissolution of the unit. (6/22/18)
- B. A proposal for the dissolution of a unit shall be adopted by a two-thirds vote of the international dues paying members of the unit voting at the business meeting or the special meeting called for that purpose as listed in the prior notice of the proposal for the dissolution of the unit. Units may use a mail ballot (electronic, email or First Class) to insure they meet their constitutional quorum. A copy of the minutes of the meeting at which the proposal was adopted shall be sent to the President of the Region and to Headquarters. Upon a determination that the requirements for the dissolution of the unit have been met, the appointed trustee shall assign the property, funds and assets of the dissolved unit as permitted or required by existing federal, state, and provincial laws governing 501(C)(7) non-profit organizations. (1/24/19)
- C. In case a unit wishing to dissolve is unable to do so using Part A and B of Sec. 4 (has no officers and/or sufficient members to meet the quorum requirements of its constitution for a business meeting), the following procedure(s) will be used. (1/24/19)
 - 1. The Region President will seek volunteers from the existing unit membership to act as President Pro tem and Secretary Pro tem to conduct a business meeting of the membership to vote on the dissolution of the unit following the protocols listed in Sec. A & B above. The Region President, or his/her representative, shall be in attendance at the meeting. Unit members in attendance at the meeting to determine dissolution of the unit will constitute a quorum. A copy of the Minutes of the meeting, if the proposal is adopted, shall be sent to the Region President and Headquarters. Upon a determination that the requirements for the dissolution of the unit have been met, the International President shall appoint a trustee to assign the property, funds and assets of the dissolved unit as permitted or required by existing federal, state, and/or provincial laws governing 501(C)(7) non-profit organizations.
 - 2. If there are no unit volunteers to oversee the dissolution of the unit the Region President will act as the unit President with the Region Executive Board acting as the unit Board. They will take charge of the unit Charter and unit property, bank accounts and other assets owned by the unit including International Club property.

ISSUED - 1/24/19

- a. The Region Secretary will contact Headquarters for a list of all members of the unit and will contact the members by First Class mail or Email with a notice of the proposal for dissolution.
- b. Included in the mailing will be a ballot to be returned either electronically or by First Class mail to the Region Secretary. The ballot will ask members to vote for or against dissolution of the unit.
- c. Within a maximum of 90 days of sending the ballots, within a set time, the Region President, in the presence of the Region Secretary, will count the ballots. If 2/3 of the returned ballots vote for dissolution, the Unit will be dissolved. Headquarters will be advised the Unit is dissolved and the Region President will send the Unit's Charter and other WBCCI property to Headquarters.
- d. The International President shall appoint a trustee for the Unit's assets. The trustee shall assign the property, funds and assets of the dissolved Unit as permitted or required by existing federal, state, and/or provincial laws governing 501(C)(7) non-profit organizations.

Sec. 5 Bylaws

A unit incorporated in a state or province may merge with another unit or it may consolidate with other units or an incorporated unit may dissolve. In all cases a unit incorporated in a state or province shall comply with the requirements as listed hereunder. (1/20/95)

A. When an incorporated unit wishes to merge with another unit or to consolidate with other units, an attorney shall be retained by the incorporated unit for the preparation of the proper documents and to advise of all the steps necessary to meet the legal requirements of the state or province in which the unit is incorporated. Unincorporated units wishing to merge or to consolidate with an incorporated unit shall comply with the requirements of sec. 2 or sec. 3 of this article as applicable. The incorporated unit shall notify Headquarters of any proposal to merge with another unit or to consolidate with other units. (1/20/95)

Sec. 6 Bylaws

An incorporated unit proposing the dissolution of the unit shall ensure a trustee is appointed in accordance with the legal requirements of the state or province in which the unit is incorporated and an attorney shall be retained to draw up the required documents and to advise the unit of the procedures to be followed to complete the dissolution of the unit. The unit shall notify International Headquarters of the proposal for the dissolution of the unit. All international club property shall be returned to Headquarters. (6/22/18)

ARTICLE VIII BOARD OF TRUSTEES

Sec. 1	Major policy changes adopted by the board of trustees shall be communicated in writing to all Unit
Bylaws	Presidents who shall so inform their members. (7/5/00)

- Sec. 2 The policy file shall be maintained by Headquarters and may be amended by a majority vote of the Bylaws IBT present and voting at a regular or special meeting called for that purpose. (7/5/93)
- Sec. 3 The preparatory seminar and IBT meetings may be combined for each of the three Board of Bylaws Trustees meetings. (6/30/18)

Sec. 4 Bylaws

WBCCI BLUE BOOK

In order to facilitate early distribution of the meeting agenda for the advance notice to the board members, all agenda items should be submitted to Headquarters by December 1 for the Mid-Winter Board Meeting, 60 days before the IBT Meeting prior to or during the International Rally and to the Corporate Manager via email or by paper copy turned into the International Rally Site Office five (5) days prior to the IBT Meeting following the International Rally. No bylaws changes, only amendments to policy and routine matters shall be permitted from the floor. (ref. Article XVIII, Sec. 1, Page 58) (1/24/19)

Sec. 5 Bylaws

A mail ballot of the members of the IBT may be authorized by the Executive Committee for matters considered urgent between meetings of the IBT and a record of the contents of such ballot and the results of such shall be recorded in the minutes at the next board meeting. (7/5/96)

Sec. 6 Bylaws

In case urgent action requires approval of the IBT, the President may obtain this approval from individual members of the IBT by telephone, fax, or e-mail. Actions taken under this approval shall be ratified by the IBT at its next meeting and recorded in the minutes thereof. (7/5/00)

Policy

- 1. Special Board of Trustees Meetings When the President deems it necessary to call a special meeting of the Board of Trustees; he/she shall have authority to authorize the Headquarters office to pay all the expenses of the Board members, other than meals, on behalf of the Club. Those on expense accounts and Airstream employees are not included. These expenses are to cover transportation, room and parking costs if traveling with an RV.
- 2. <u>Term of Office</u> The term of the members of the International Board of Trustees shall be extended so that each retiring member shall be an exofficio member of the Board of Trustees for the purpose of completing the pending rally following installation of the next succeeding Board of Trustees and terminating one (1) week following installation. (7/5/65)
- 3. The minutes of the Board of Trustees Meetings will be distributed to all Board Members, Standing Committee Chairs, 1st and 2nd Region Vice Presidents, and International Past Presidents receiving the Blue Book inserts within sixty (60) days except the minutes for the IBT meeting prior to the start of the International Rally will be distributed within ten (10) days. In addition all correspondence normally distributed to Region Presidents will also be forwarded to the 1st and 2nd Region Vice Presidents. All nominees and announced candidates for the International Board of Trustees will be placed on the distribution list for all the above correspondence and minutes. (1/14/16)
- 4. All retiring board members of the International Board of Trustees shall be provided with a copy of the minutes of the meeting held prior to their retirement. (7/5/75)
- 5. The minutes of the Board of Trustees meetings shall show the results of votes taken. All votes of the IBT shall be by Roll Call vote, except when a request for Unanimous Consent is approved. The minutes shall show the names of those members voting in favor; the names voting against; and those abstaining from voting. Roll call voting by IBT members shall be in a random order sequence. (1/10/14)

ARTICLE XIII USE OF CLUB NAME AND EMBLEM

Sec. 1 Bylaws The official emblem and insignia of the WBCCI is a blue disk with the words "Wally Byam Airstream Club WBCCI Rallies Caravans" inscribed around the outer edge and an image of the head and shoulders of Wally Byam superimposed on a world globe whose surface shows North and South America surrounded by a red compass disk. (6/24/16)

Sec. 2 Bylaws The official emblem and insignia for WBCCI lifetime members is a duplicate of the above described disk surrounded by a 1/4" gold strip imprinted in large black letters with the words "life" at the top center and "member" at the bottom center. The overall dimension of the life emblem and insignia is no smaller than 1 3/4". (7/22/17)

Sec. 3 Bylaws A Blue Beret with its approved caravanner insignia of the style approved by the International Board of Trustees shall be the official headgear and may be worn for formal or casual wear by any member in good standing. (1/20/17)

Sec. 4 Bylaws All Units may design their own badge, unique to their Unit, or use a standard badge available through Headquarters as described in Appendix 2. Each badge will contain at the minimum the official emblem and insignia of the WBCCI with a minimum dimension of 1 ¾ inches as described in Sec. 1 of Article XIII. In addition, it will contain the name of the Unit and the name of the member. If a member holds a current elected position in the Unit or a Region, that should be designated on the badge. Past elected offices can be designated on the badge. Any badge designed by a Unit shall be submitted for approval by the IBT or Executive Committee. (1/24/19)

Sec. 5 Bylaws Uses of the club name and emblem: (1/20/17)

- A. Any member in good standing of the international club and their dependent children and such other children who may accompany them shall be entitled to wear the emblem and other insignia as may from time to time be adopted by the board of trustees. (7/5/06)
- B. Neither the name, emblem, insignia nor the annual membership directory of the international club shall be used for any purpose other than that authorized by the board of trustees. (1/20/95)
- C. All stationery and publications of the various regions and units shall use the name, emblem and insignia as prescribed by the board of trustees. (6/22/91)
- Sec. 6 Bylaws

The official club emblem and insignia, as described in Article XIII, Sec. 1 and Sec. 4, shall serve as identification of the wearer of a Unit designed badge or WBCCI provided badge as a member of WBCCI for entry to any Unit, Region, or International sponsored event. In addition, such badges, bearing the club emblem and insignia, may be used as identification on any club sponsored caravan. (7/22/17)

- 4. Other expenses necessary for good management procedures may be allowable when properly supported and if approved by the International President.
- 5. Reimbursement in excess of budgeted amounts may be considered when approved by both the International President and the IBT and supported by justifications and receipts.
- 6. Should a Region President deem it necessary for their Region to be represented at a rally within their Region and no Region officer is available to attend the rally the Region President may designate a qualified member of WBCCI to attend as the Region representative.
 - A. The designee may be reimbursed in accordance with Policy, Article XVI, Financial Disbursements.
 - B. The amount reimbursed to the designee will be charged against a Region officer's budgeted expenses.
- 7. Region Officers (President, 1st and 2nd Vice Presidents) will be reimbursed based on the budget approved by the IBT for the fiscal year only for attendance at official WBCCI activities.
 - A. Travel expenses to and from the International Rally are not reimbursable for the Region Officers.

1. Exclusions:

- a. Region Rallies and Region Board Meetings within their Region.
- b. IBT meetings associated with the International Rally, nor for Officers' travel to or from or during caravans.
- B. The total allowable travel reimbursement for each Region President will be calculated using a base amount plus an amount per Unit in that Region.
 - 1. Travel expenses to and from the Mid-Winter IBT meeting will be basis of a submitted budget to the Treasurer prior to July 1 for approval.
 - a. Such budgeted funds may also be used to fund travel by any other elected Region Officer to the Mid-Winter IBT meeting up to the budgeted amount. (1/24/19)
 - 2. Reimbursement cannot exceed the approved budgeted amount.
 - 3. Claims will be submitted by Region Presidents directly to Headquarters within 90 days of travel.
 - 4. Reimbursements from WBCCI are not available to Region officers reimbursed by their Region.
- C. Cross funding for reimbursement of authorized travel by a Region's Vice President is authorized with full approval of the Region Officers affected.

PAGE - 51 ISSUED -- 1/24/19

Policy

PAST INTERNATIONAL PRESIDENTS COUNCIL

1. All Past International Presidents are members of the Past International Presidents Council and may make recommendations, in writing, on policies and procedures to the International Board of Trustees through the Council Chair. Information sent to International Board of Trustee members may be sent to Past International Presidents who, annually, submit a written request to Headquarters. (6/21/93)

Policy

STANDARD ITEMS

Identification (I.D.) Badges

A new member of WBCCI will be issued, by headquarters at the time of joining, a standard membership badge as described in Appendix 2, bearing the official emblem and insignia of WBCCI. The official badges and titles authorized are shown in Appendix #2. No other deviation aside from ID badges provided under Article XIII will be recognized unless authorized by the Board of Trustees. Further, no items such as stickers, emblems, insignias or symbols, either permanent or temporary, should be affixed to the face of any WBCCI badge in such a way as to obscure the official emblem and insignia of WBCCI. The approved circular Life Member vinyl decal is the singular exception. Further detailed explanation of types of identification badges and authorized use is as follows: (7/22/17)

- 1. <u>Board of Trustees</u> Official I.D. badges bearing the words "Board of Trustees" shall be worn by all members of that body so designated by the Constitution. This badge insert is to be worn only while serving as a member of the Board of Trustees. (7/5/84)
- 2. <u>International Officers</u> Official I.D. badges bearing the words "International Officer" shall be worn by all International Officers so designated by the Constitution.
- 3. <u>International</u> Official I.D. badges bearing the word "International" shall be worn by spouses of members of the Board of Trustees, the Parliamentarian, Chair of all Standing Committees, Past International Officers, Corporate Manager, Past Executive Secretaries and Past Trustees and their spouses. (1/20/17)

PAGE - 52 ISSUED - 1/20/17 REVISED - 1/24/19

- 4. <u>I. D. Badge Color Coding</u> Color coded I.D. badges are authorized for wear as follows:
 - a. Royal Blue and Gold with Gold Inserts International Presidents and Past Presidents and spouses of each. The spouse of each may use the title "First Lady".
 - b. Royal Blue with White Inserts Present and Past International 1st, 2nd, and 3rd Vice Presidents, Corporate Managers, Recording Secretaries, Treasurers, Parliamentarians, Executive Secretaries, the Honorary Corresponding Secretary and the spouse of each. No other titles are authorized for wear with this badge. (1/20/17)
 - c. <u>Green with White Inserts</u> Present and Past Airstream executives who have served or are now serving on the Board of Trustees and the spouse of each. Titles currently authorized for wear in this badge are Trustee and Past Trustee.
 - d. Red and Silver with White Inserts Present and Past Region Presidents and their spouses.
 - e. Red with White Inserts Region Vice Presidents and their spouses.
 - f. <u>Coral with White Inserts</u> To be worn by all International Standing Committee Chairmen and spouses of each.
 - g. <u>Milk-White with Light Blue Inserts</u> Present and Past Unit Presidents and the spouse of each. The spouse may wear the title First Lady or Past First Lady, whichever is appropriate, and none other in this badge. This is to provide Past Unit Presidents and spouses, who have moved

- 3. Members who have been elected to an office in the International Club or an Intra-club shall, upon retirement or resignation from such office, be eligible to fly and display an official approved Past Officer's flag. The requirement of having to be elected to an office in order to be eligible to display and fly a Past Officer flag shall not be applicable to a member who held the office of International Executive Secretary, or who held the office of International Recording Secretary, prior to July 5, 1985. A Unit Officer who has served as a Unit President for more than one term may be issued a "Blue Star" in lieu of an additional Past Presidents Flag. This "Blue Star" is to be sewn on the outer white stripe, centered. Subsequent Blue Stars will be sewn above and below the original Star. In those cases where the spouse has served as the President of a Unit, additional "Blue Stars" may be added. The size of the "Blue Star" shall be four inches in size and shall be issued by HQ WBCCI. (6/26/06)
- 4. Past and present International Officers, past and present Region Officers, past and present Unit Officers and past and present Intra-club Officers may display National, State or Provincial flags and approved flags as depicted in Appendix #12. The WBCCI (General Membership) flag may be flown by all members, but in order after State or Provincial flags and before all other Club authorized flags and pennants. The precedence, or sequence of the flying of flags, as listed in Appendix #12, pages 8 through 10, as Flag No. 1 through as many as 5. (6/26/06)
- 5. A flag designed by a Unit or an Intra-club shall be of dimensions not to exceed thirty six (36) inches (hoist) by sixty (60) inches (fly). A pennant designed by a Unit or an Intra-club shall be of dimensions not to exceed twenty four (24) inches (hoist) by thirty six (36) inches (fly). All such flags shall carry the name of the unit or Intra-club and the name of the "Wally Byam Caravan Club International" or "WBCCI". All such flags and pennants, except those in use prior to January 17, 1997, require the approval of the International Board of Trustees or Executive Committee. (1/24/19)

6. Flag Protocol

- a. National flags may be displayed outdoors from sunrise to sunset on buildings, on recreational vehicles and on stationary flagpoles. (1/17/97)
- b. National flags may be displayed outdoors at night provided such flags are illuminated by lighting directed at the flags. (1/17/97)
- c. National flags should not be displayed outdoors in inclement weather unless said flags are of all-weather material. (6/27/05)
- d. When two or more national flags are to be flown or displayed together, such flags should be of approximately the same dimensions and flown or displayed at the same height on separate staffs. (1/17/97)
- e. International flag protocol requires that the host country's flag be flown in the host country's position of honor. When in another country, the national flag of your country should not be the only national flag you fly or display. When you do not have the national flag of the country you are visiting, do not fly or display the national flag of your country. In the latter circumstances, you may fly or display the flag of your state or province and your flag of office, if any, or an International Board of Trustees approved Unit or Intraclub flag. (6/27/05)

Motorhomes (Class A, B, C) and Fifth Wheel Travel Trailers (6/22/96)

- 1. The numbers should be placed on the front and rear at the top of the RV, centered below the cluster lights with 2 inch spacing when possible.
- 2. When facing the rear of the RV, if it is not possible to place the numbers below the cluster, the numbers should be placed to the right of the cluster lights with as much spacing as possible.
- 3. The decals should be placed on the front and rear, centered above the numbers or in the most visible location available.
- 4. Stars should be applied in the same manner as on TRAILERS whenever possible.
- 11. Membership numbers that were in use on Airstreams while participating in historically significant events may be designated as Heritage Numbers. Heritage Numbers shall be reserved from reassignment except as provided in Sec. 2, item H of this policy. Current members assigned a membership number that is designated as a Heritage Number may continue to use that number as long as they remain members in good standing. The approved Heritage Numbers are: (6/22/18)

2	115	360	692	1166	1954	2209	2397	3238	4255	6082	7170
35	120	503	747	1199	1986	2279	2400	3317	4936	6472	7305
50	163	598	751	1242	2058	2345	2420	3560	5232	6524	7505
81	165	606	767	1309	2186	2359	2421	3690	5289	6705	7667
83	310	608	975	1408	2194	2374	2474	3912	5618	6730	
87	329	616	985	1506	2198	2375	2476	4032	5980		8511
100	342	627	1042	1604	2201	2380	2925	4091	6065	6768	8671
		V= /	1012	1004	2201	2300	2923	4091	กบกว	6781	

Nominations for Heritage Numbers with rationale will be submitted by the WBCCI Historical Standing Committee to the IBT for their approval. (1/11/18)

Policy

PAST PRESIDENT PENNANTS AND WINDOW DECALS

1. Board approved Past President pennants and window decals may be purchased from Headquarters. (1/29/93)

Policy

INTERNATIONAL BOARD OF TRUSTEES AND REGION VICE PRESIDENTS

- 1. Window Signs Upon assuming office, each member of the Board of Trustees and all Region Vice Presidents shall receive a window sign measuring approximately 12" x 6" to be placed in the window of their recreational vehicle manufactured by Airstream, Inc. for identification purposes. These signs should be of the following colors and identify the office held. (1/24/19)
 - a. International President Gold with black bordering and lettering.
 - b. Other International Officers (including the Parliamentarian) Silver with blue border and lettering. (1/24/19)
 - Region Presidents Silver with red border and red lettering.
 - d. Region Vice Presidents Red with white border and lettering. (1/24/19)

PAGE - 59 ISSUED - 1/24/19

APPENDICES

APPENDIX #1 - Deleted	6/25/15	
See pages 10 – 10.2 under Bylaws and Policy		
APPENDIX #2		
Official Badges and Inserts1	1/17/92	
2	1/20/17	
3	1/16/09	
4	7/05/09 revised	d
5	1/18/08	
APPENDIX #3 Deleted – see website or call Headquarters	1/20/17	
APPENDIX #4 Deleted	1/24/19	*
APPENDIX #5 Deleted	1/24/19	*
Suggested Model of Unit Constitution and Bylaws1	6/22/18	
2		
3		
4		
5		
6		
7		
8		
9		
10		
APPENDIX #7 11		
Unit Requirements For Filing I.R.S. Reports1	7/05/11 revised	
APPENDIX #8	1/18/08	
Units within Regions	1/04/10	di.
	1/24/19	*
	1/24/19	*
Region Man	1/24/19	*
Region Map	1/10/14	
APPENDIX #9 Deleted – see website or call Headquarters	1/20/17	

^{*} denotes new page

APPENDIX - #4 PAGES - 1-5 DELETED - 1/24/19

APPENDIX - #5 PAGE - 1 DELETED - 1/24/19

APPENDIX - #8 PAGE - 1 ISSUED - 1/24/19

UNITS WITHIN REGIONS

REGION 1 - 5 Units:

Cape Cod Massachusetts Airstream Club -167 Charter Oak Connecticut Airstream Club - 25 New England Airstream Club - 64

Northeast Mountaineers Airstream Club - 65 Quebec Canada - 125

REGION 2 – 16 Units:

Al-Mon-O Pennsylvania - 131 Central Maryland - 166 Central Pennsylvania Airstream Club - 164 Delaware Valley New Jersey - 36 Delmarva - 26 Hudson Mohawk New York - 71 Keystone Pennsylvania - 92 Metropolitan New York Airstream Club - 72 Mid-Atlantic - 53 New Jersey - 66 New York Finger Lakes - 2 Ontario Canada - 124 Penn Lehigh - 93 Pennsylvania - 91 Washington DC - 170 Watchung New Jersey Airstream Club - 68

REGION 3 - 18 Units:

Big Bend Florida Airstream Club – 153 Carolinas Airstream Club - 21 Coastal Georgia Airstream Club - 37 Florida Airstream Club - 27 Florida Springs Airstream Club - 174 Florida Suncoast Airstream Unit - 129 Florida Treasure Coast Airstream Club - 162 Georgia - 32 Northern Virginia Airstream Club - 110 Palmetto State Airstream Club - 22
Piedmont North Carolina - 161
Shenandoah Valley of Virginia - 149
South Carolina Coastal Airstream Club - 150
South Florida Airstream Club - 30
Southeastern Camping - 12
Tidewater Virginia Airstream Club - 111
Virginia - 109
Western North Carolina - 169

REGION 4 - 12 Units:

Akron Ohio - 77 Appalachian West Virginia - 115 Cincinnati Ohio Airstream Club - 78 Columbus Ohio - 80 Mahoning Valley Ohio - 82 Miami Valley of Ohio - 84

Michigan Airstream Club - 52 Mid-Eastern Michigan - 140 Mohican Valley Ohio Airstream Club - 85 Northern Ohio Virtual Airstream - 6 Southeastern Michigan Airstream Club - 137 The Western Reserve Camping - 79

WBCCI BLUE BOOK

BYLAWS AND POLICY

APPENDIX - #8
PAGE - 2
ISSUED - 1/24/19

REGION 5 - 6 Units

Central Indiana Airstream Club - 41 Indiana Airstream Club - 40 Kentucky Airstream Club - 49

Northern Illinois Airstream Club - 38 Southern Indiana - 44 WBCCI Illinois Lincolnland Airstream Club - 176

REGION 6 - 9 Units

Alabama Airstream Club - 1 Arkansas Razorback Airstream Club - 5 East Tennessee Airstream Club - 165 Greater New Orleans Airstream Club - 133 Louisiana Airstream Club - 50

Mississippi Airstream Club - 56 Music City Airstream Club - 158 Pensacola Florida - 29 West Tennessee Airstream Club - 96

REGION 7 - 3 Units

Minnesota Airstream Club - 55 North Dakota Peace Garden - 145 Wisconsin - 116

REGION 8 - 6 Units

Greater St. Louis Airstream Club - 58 Iowa - 46 Kansas City Missouri - 59

Missouri Greater Ozark - 151 Nebraska Airstream Club - 62 North Iowa Airstream Club - 171

REGION 9 - 10 Units

East Texas Lakes - 98 Greater Houston Airstream Club – 155 Heart of Texas Camping - 9 North Texas - 99 Oklahoma Airstream Club - 88

Texas Alamo - 168
Texas Gulf Coast - 103
Texas Highland Lakes Airstream Club - 172
Texas Hill Country - 104
Texas Plains Airstream Club - 106

WBCCI BLUE BOOK

BYLAWS AND POLICY

APPENDIX - #8 PAGE - 3 ISSUED - 1/24/19

REGION 10 - 6 Units

Alberta Saskatchewan Canada - 120 British Columbia Airstream Club - 121 Idaho Airstream Club- 35

Montana Airstream Club - 61 Oregon Airstream Club - 90 Washington - 112

REGION 11 - 6 Units

Arizona Airstream Club - 3 Denver Colorado – 24 Four Corners Unit – 4

New Mexico - 69 Utah's Wasatch Airstream Club- 108 Wyoming - 119

REGION 12 - 11 Units

Central Coast California - 20 El Camino Real Airstream Club - 14 Greater Bay Area Airstream Club - 18 Greater Los Angeles Airstream Club - 13 Lake Tahoe Airstream Club - 178

Las Vegas Airstream Club - 63 Northern California Airstream Club - 11 Sacramento Valley Airstream Club - 8 San Diego California - 15 Sierra Nevada - 157 South Coast California Airstream Club - 19

OVERSEAS – 1 UNIT

Europe - 177